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VISION STATEMENT

To be market leaders in yarn, building company's
image through innovation and competitiveness,
ensuring satisfaction to customers and stakeholders
and to fulfill social obligations.

MISSION STATEMENT

As lead producers of quality yarn we will build on
our core competencies and achieve excellence in
performance. We aim at exceeding expectations of
all stakeholders. We target to achieve technological
advancements and to inculcate the most efficient,
ethical and time tested business practices in our
management.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 50t Annual General Meeting of the company will be held at
the registered office of the Company, Habibabad, Kohat on Wednesday the 21st October
2020 at 12:00 P.M. to transact the following business.

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
17tk July, 2020.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 30th June 2020 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports
thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 and to fix their remuneration.

The retiring Auditors M/s Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri and Company
Chartered Accountants, Lahore being eligible have offered themselves for re-
appointment.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4, To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as special
resolutions with or without modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s):

RESOLVED THAT:

Approval of members of the company be and is hereby accorded to give the
Building and Plant & Machinery of the Company on lease to Janana De Malucho
Textile Ltd. (JDM) an associated Company, w.e.f. October 1, 2020 to June 30,
2021.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT amount of lease rental will be Rs.100,000/- per
month. Both the companies have the option to terminate the lease with one-
month prior notice.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT:

The Company Secretary and Chief Executive of the company (the “Authorized
Officers”), or such one or more persons as may, from time to time, be specifically
designated by the Authorized Officers for the purpose, be and are, as the case
may be, hereby authorized to complete all necessary legal and other corporate
formalities with regard to this matter on behalf of the company and to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be deemed necessary and beneficial
for the company in this regard.

All acts, deeds, and things done by the Authorized Officer pursuant to the above
Resolutions for and on behalf of and in the name of the company shall be binding

acts, deeds and things done by the company.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary, be and are hereby
jointly or severally authorized to take any further

Ly e e [ [ ]
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modifications/amendments/corrections in these Special Resolutions at a later
stage if pointed out by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
and to take such other steps, execute such other documents and make necessary
corporate and other filings as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of
giving effect to the above Special Resolutions and all other matters incidental or
ancillary thereto.”

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

o
Kohat Naeem Ullah Malik
Dated: 30t September 2020 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. The register of members of the Company will remain closed from 13th October
2020 to 21t October 2020 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by the
Company’s Shares Registrar, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 5th
Floor, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi by the close of business
(up to 05:00 P.M.) on 12th October, 2020 will be considered in time for registration
in the name of the transferees, and be eligible for the purpose of attending and
voting at the AGM.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another
member of the Company as a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxy
Form duly completed must be deposited at the registered office of the company at
least 48 hours before the time of meeting.

3. Any individual beneficial owner of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this meeting
must bring his/her CNIC or Passport to prove his/her identity, and in case of
Proxy must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport. Representative
of Corporate entities should bring Board’s resolution/Power of Attorney with
specimen signatures required for the purpose.

4. Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, if the company receives
consent from members holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at
least Seven (7) days prior to the date of meeting, the company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

5. Members are requested to notify immediately of any change in their addresses.

6. The notice of Annual General Meeting/Audited financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2020 have been placed at the Company’s website.
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2017 REGARDING SPECIAL BUSINESS:

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on 21st October
2020.

The BOD of the Company, in their meeting held on September 24, 2020 has decided to
lease the building and plant & machinery of the Company and has offered the lease to
JDM in order to keep the plant & machinery from irreparable damage and to save the
Company from further loss and to keep the machinery in excellent working condition.

Directors of the company are only interested to the extent of their shareholding in the
company.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

As the Chairman of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the review for the year
ended June 30, 2020 highlighting the Company’s performance and the role of the Board of
Directors in guiding the management to carry out its responsibility for the benefit of all its
stakeholders.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The current fiscal year happened to be very difficult for the company as compared to the
previous year. The impact of COVID -19 pandemic has significantly impacted the operations
and the supply chain of the company. It has also led to reduced demand amidst temporary
suspension of the company’s operations. On March 23, 2020, the Government of the Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa announced a temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the
COVID-19. Complying with the lockdown, the Company temporarily suspended its operations
from March 25, 2020. The company intends to resume partial productionactivity by the end of
October, 2020 and has taken all necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate continuation

of its business despite slowed down economic activity.

The company’s turnover reduced by 30.17%and its loss before taxation of Rs.381.785 Million,
during the current reviewed period, has substantially increased by 300% from a loss of
Rs.95.379 Million as compared to the previous period.

Current year's financial results in comparison to previous year are as under:

Year ended June 30,

2020 2019

(Rupees in thousands)
Sales 1,548,962 2,218,285
Gross (Loss) / Profit (118,061) 121,480
Operating (Loss) / Profit (226,820) 19,901
Finance Cost (147,730) (115,890)
Loss before Taxation (381,785) (95,379)
Loss after Taxation (387,598) (39,018)

-------- Rupees---------
Loss per share (106.13) (10.68)
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The Board of Directors, in the meeting held on August 12, 2020, approved the merger of the
Company with its associated company, Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. (JDM), which

will achieve economies of scale.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BOARD

The board has developed a policy to evaluate its own performance, as well as individual
performances of every member and board committees.

While developing respective committees, as required under the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 , the Board has established specific roles,
guidelines and responsibilities through some terms of references for each committee.

Frequency of the board’s meeting during financial year 2019-20 was as follows:

> Board of Directors: Seven
> Board Audit Committee: Four

> Human resource and Remuneration Committee: One

The Company has established an independent Internal Audit department and follows a risk
based audit methodology.

BUSINESS RISKS, CHALLENGES AND FUTURE PERSPECTIVE

The global uncertainty caused by the pandemic may continue to pose a risk to the company’s
business should a second wave of COVID -19 hit the country. In the coming financial year,

the textile industry in general may also face the challengeof High-power generation cost (due
to increase in gas tariff by SNGPL):

Imposition of Sales Tax

Escalation in labor cost (increase in minimum wage);

Rupee devaluation (thereby increasing in raw material input cost); and
Increase in borrowing cost (through escalation in SBP base rate)

In order to reduce the negative impact of these challenges, the textile companies need to
strategize on optimum utilization of their resources to achieve desired results.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | wish to acknowledge and appreciate the extraordinary efforts made
by the whole team of professionals, in sailing the company through one of its most critical times of
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operational losses and liquidity crunches. | also express gratitude to all stakeholders of the
company including our customers, financial institutions and supply-chain vendors for their
continued cooperation and support.

September 24, 2020 Lt. Gen (Retd) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Chairman




DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The directors of the Company are pleased to present the 50" annual report of your
company together with audited financial statements and auditors' report for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
Company’s Overview

The principle activity of your company is to spin yarns of medium to fine counts range,
i.e. from 30/1 to 80/1, both carded and combed. Our customer base is mainly shuttle-
less and air-jet segments of weaving industry. We also have capacity to produce open
end yarn from 8/1 to 12/1 from primary wastes extracted from ring spinning process.

Financial Results
Current year's results compared with previous year are given as under:

Year ended June 30,

2020 2019
(Rupees in thousands)
Sales 1,548,962 2,218,285
Gross (Loss) / Profit (118,061) 121,480
Operating (Loss) / Profit (226,820) 19,901
Finance Cost (147,730) (115,890)
Loss before Taxation (381,785) (95,379)
Loss after Taxation (387,598) (39,018)
Rupees
Loss per share (106.13) (10.68)

Appropriation of Dividend
Keeping in view the current financial position, the directors have recommending cash

dividend of Rs NIL per share i.e Nil % (June 30,2019: Rs Nil% per share).

Comments on “qualified opinion” in the auditor’s report

The auditors have pointed out that the fresh revaluation of buildings and plant &
machinery as at June 30, 2020 has revealed that fair market values of these fixed
assets on the aforementioned date were lower by Rs.132.607 million as compared to
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their carrying values. As the Company is headed towards a merger with its associated
company, Janana De Malucho T extile Mills Lid. (JDM), therefore, for the purpose of
calculation of SWAP ratio, a fresh revaluation shall be carried out in order {o properly

ascertain the realistic values of company’s assets.

Comments on “emphasis of matter paragraph” in the auditor’s report

The Company has not made provisions against the levy of Gas Infrastructure

Development Cess (GIDC) on the basis of following arguments:

s The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) in its judgement dated 13 -08-2020 states
that the cess under GIDC Act, 2015 was levied only on those consumers of natural
gas which on account of their industrial or commercial dealings had passed on

GIDC burden to their customers / clients.

in the light of the decision of the SC as described above, the Company has filed a
review petition before the SCP for waiver of full amount of GIDC. Because the
Company, being a spinning unit and producing raw material for weaving sector has
not passed on burden of GIDC to its customers and company has never made any
provision of GID C expense in its accounts which is conclusive proof that GIDC
effect has not been passed on to the consumer. The yarn market is not a regulated
market i.e., textile units are price takers not the price makers, therefore, spinning
sector could not add GIDC in their prices and certainly has not collected the same
from its customers.

« The Company has also challenged the levy of GIDC in the Peshawar High Court
(PHC) also, on the basis of section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 which inter alia
states that:

“(2) Where any cess referred to in subsection (1) has not been paid or realized
before the coming into force of this Act or if so paid or realized, has been
refunded 1o or adjusted against other fees or taxes or charges payable by the
gas consumers or the company, the same shall be recoverable in accordance
with the provisions of this Act:

Provided that the said cess shall not be collected from industrial sector

excluding Fertilizer Fuel Stock, mentioned at S.No. 3 of the Second
Schedule to both the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011
(XXI of 2011) and the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Ordinance,
2014 (VI of 2014), if it has not been collected by it

The PHC has granted stay order against recovery of GIDC under Section 8(2)
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of the GIDC Act, 2015. The PHC in its order dated 1609-2020, has referred the
case to OGRA and has asked them to hear the pleas of Textile sector and give
decision on this point of Law.
The lawyers hired by KPTMA have said that our cases are very strong and valid
and the PHC would not have granted stay after the decision of SCP if there has
been no substance in Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act of 2015, and that that the
decision of the Courts & OGRA will hopefully be in the favour of the Company and
the spinning industry.

Comments on material uncertainty relating to Going Concern as pointed out in
the Auditor's Report

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the
Company is viewed as continuing business for the foreseeable future and the
management neither intends to liquidate the entity nor to cease its operations
indefinitely. The mills operations were forced to be closed during March-2020, as
per directives of KPK government due to COVID-19. The company’s new
management is planning to start manufacturing operations, at least by 50% of the
installed capacity by end of October, after carrying out necessary repairs and
maintenance required by plant and machinery. The company has also made
payment of outstanding wages to its labor, in subsequent period. The company has
also paid its due mark-up over long term loan to the Bank of Khyber and approval
regarding deferment of mark-up over short term finance facilities by Bank of Khyber
is also in process. Some partial payments of statutory obligations have also been
made like sales tax, income tax, EOBI & ESSI and balance payment will also be
made at the earliest. Furthermore, the new management of the company has also
made some dispatches of raw materials and finished good inventory against
advance receipts. As the company’s production activities become fully operational,
all remaining liabilities like creditors and other payables will also be reduced.
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Financial perspective

During the current fiscal period under review, turnover of the company has reduced by
Rs.669.323 Million (30.17%) and the related cost of sales has also decreased by
Rs.429.782 Million (20.49%), thereby resulting in gross LOSS of Rs.118.061 Million as
compared to the gross PROFIT of Rs.121.480 Million during corresponding period.
The company's loss before taxation of Rs.381.785 Million, during the current reviewed
period, has substantially increased by 300% from a loss of Rs.95.379 Million as
compared to previous period.

A few of the factors contributing towards Loss of the company are withdrawal of zero-
rating regime for five export-oriented sectors including textile industry with effect from
01 July, 2019 and levy of 17% sales tax on sales to registered persons and 3% further
tax on sales to unregistered persons, which amounts to 20% sales tax on our yarn
sales to non-registered persons in Faisalabad yarn market.

Moreover, during the period under review we have faced under-utilization of our
production capacities due to shut down of Faisalabad market and the suspension of
Mills operations due to evolving COVID-19 situation in Pakistan, in compliance with
the directives of the Provincial Government and Labour Department of KPK regarding
the Lockdown as a measure to control the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and to
ensure safety of our employees and workforce. The company had only been able to
operate at 57% capacity utilization during this financial year, and non-absorption of
fixed costs due to heavy under-utilization is also a cause of loss.

Textile Industry Overview

Our textile industry is facing significant economic issues & challenges in achieving
desired GDP growth and export targets. The corona virus pandemic has hit Pakistan's
economy hard like the rest of the world also.

Our spinning segment operating in fine counts range has to rely considerably on
imported raw materials, which are subject to additional import/custom duties, thus

increasing the input costs.

Due to decline in yarn exports, abundant supply of locally manufactured yarn is
available in local market, also augmented by Indian low-cost yarn imports & illegal
smuggling through Afghan transit trade route, thus leading to a drastic fall in yarn
prices.
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Other challenges continue to be faced by this sector are higher power generation and
labor costs as compared to neighboring countries as well as huge amounts stuck in
sales tax refunds. Imposition of 17% sales tax on this sector by rescinding S.R.O 1125

has further created a dampening impact on the entire value chain.
Future Outlook

The economic future depends on the time it takes to reverse the adverse effects of the
pandemic on economic activities. With the extraordinary challenges posed by the crisis
on almost all sectors of the national economy, the need to maintain food security and
livelihoods has become even more important. Fiscal targets will be challenging to
achieve as the Government plans to boost healthcare spending in the absence of
adequate tax measures. However, now that the lockdown restrictions have been lifted
completely because of decline in new COVID-19 cases, there is hope that the business
activities shall be normalizing. If this proceeds smoothly, it is expected that the
economy will resume its growth momentum. Let’s all pray to Allah Almighty, that we
are not hit by another wave of Covid-19 or another pandemic.

Event After the Reporting Date
The Board of Directors of the Company, in the meeting held on August 12, 2020, has

discussed the matter of merger of the Company with Janana De Malucho Textile Mills
Ltd. (JDM) and approved the merger of both the Companies. Further, the Board of the
Company in the meeting held on September 24, 2020 has offered JDM to take the
factory buildings and plant & machinery of the Company on lease in order to keep the

plant & machinery of the Company in excellent working condition. This is a stop gap /

interim arrangement {ill the completion of merger of both the entities.

Corporate Governance and Financial reporting methodologies

The Directors confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the CCG Regulations) for the following

matters:
a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, presents

fairly its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity.
b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the company.

¢) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
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these financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgments.

d) International financial reporting standards, as applied in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of these financial statements and departures there from
have been adequately disclosed therein.

e) The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of the CCG
Regulations’

h) The board has an established Audit Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee, and an independent director has been appointed as a
Chairman of these Committees in compliance with the CCG Regulations.

i) There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties levies and charges
which are outstanding as at June 30, 2020, except for those disclosed in the
financial statements

However, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have pointed out a non-compliance

with the CCG Regulations in their Review Report on the Statement of Compliance.

The point placed by the auditor’s and managements comments on the point are given

below:
S: ) AUDITOR’S OBSERVATION MANAGEMENT’S REPLY
1. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company also | When the previous CFO resigned from service,
holds the office of the Company Secretary. the BOD could not find any candidate who was

willing to come to Kohat because of its location
and security situation in the area. The BOD then
decided to appoint the Company Secretary Mr.
Naeem Ullah, to the position of Chief Financial
Officer also, who was qualified for the position
and was willing to take up the additional
responsibilities of managing the finance
department of the Company.

Composition of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company as at 30" June, 2020, constitutes as follows:

Total number of directors 9

Male 8
Female 1
Independent Directors 4
Non-executive Directors 3
Executive Director 2
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Meetings and attendance by each director
During the financial year 2019-20, following meetings were held. The number of

meetings attended by each director during the year is given here under:

Board Human
Board of Audit Resource &
Director STATUS Directors Committee Remuneration
(BOD) (BAC) Committee
(HR&R)
BOD member &
Mr. Raza Kuli Khan CEO, until 17- 717 N/M 11
Khattak
07-2020
BOD member &
Dr. Hamid Zeb Khan Chairman, until a7 N/M N/M
17-07-2020
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan BOD member
Khattak until 17-07-2020 | %7 2/4 NM
Re-elected on
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan 18-07-2020 4a/7 N/M N/M
. . BOD member
Mr. Zahid Said until 17-07-2020 77 4/4 17
Mr. Amin Ullah Khan -do- a/7 2/4 N/M
Mr. Omar Khan Afridi -do- 417 N/M 171
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan
Khattak -do- a/7 N/M N/M
Mr. Ahad Khattak -do- 6/7 N/M N/M

Leave of absence was granted to the directors who were unable to attend the

board meetings.

Election of Directors

The previous BOD of the Company, on 30-03-2020, without holding Extra Ordinary
General Meeting (EOGM), declared that 13 directors stand elected unopposed.
Majority shareholders filed complaint with the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) against this act of the previous BOD. The Registrar of Companies,
SECP, vide his letter No.5713/2/189/Cos, dated June 08, 2020, issued directions to the
Company to hold a fresh EOGM for overdue election of directors. The fresh election of
directors was held on 17 July, 2020 and 07 persons were elected as directors.
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The new BOD of the Company comprises of the following persons:

1- Lt. Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

2- Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

3- Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad

4- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

5- Maj. (Retd.) Muhammad Zia (Resigned on 05-08-2020)
6- Mr. Muhammad Iftikhar Ali

7- Mr. Saad Waheed

8- Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan (Co-opted on 12-08-2020)

The new BOD held its meeting on 18-07-2020 for appointment of Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), and members of BAC & HR&R committees.

Particulars of Chairman & CEO

e Lt Gen (Retd.) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak, Chairman
e Mr. Muhammad Iftikhar Ali, CEO
Particulars of the members of Board Audit Committee

e Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan, Chairman

e Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member

e Mr. Saad Waheed Member
Particulars of the members of HR & R Committee

e Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan, Chairman

e Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member

e Mr. Saad Waheed Member

The terms of reference for these committees have been developed, communicated and
properly implemented. The BAC meets quarterly and HR& R Commttee meeting is held
annnualy.

Remuneration to Directors

Details of remuneration paid to directors of the company during the year are provided
in the financial statements. Only meeting fee is paid to independent & non-executive
directors. We are also formulating comprehensive policy for it in line with the guidelines
provided in CCG Regulations and Companies Act, 2017.
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Performance evaluation of Directors on the Board
The board has developed and adopted structured self-evaluation criteria and

processes to evaluate its own performance, as well as individual performances of every
member and its Committees.

Health, Safety and Environment

We feel our responsibility towards health and safety of our dedicated employees.
Proper first aid medical assistance is provided at dispensary located at our premises in
case of any injury. We are trying to establish and maintain best possible health, safety
and cleanliness standards both at our premises as well as in nearby localities.

Correspondence with stakeholders
The company’s and quarterly and annual operational and financial results are placed

on its official website www.bcm.com.pk.

Corporate social responsibility
We strongly feel the importance in service to humanity and try to ensure that best

possible benefits should pass on to the deserving. We also encourage our strategic
team members to dedicate their time for active participation in such activities.

Key Operating and Financial Data (Six Years Summary)

Summarized key operating and financial results for last six years is annexed in the

financial statements.

Pattern of Shareholding

The statement of pattern of shareholding of the company as at June 30, 2020 is
attached with the Annual Report.

Company’s Contribution towards Government and Social Sector
We would like to give here under our company’s revenue contribution toward the

government sector, bank and social sector during the year ended 30-06-2020.

1. Government Sector Rs. in Million
)] Income tax 4.365
(i) Power & Fuel 194.451
(iii) Financial institution/Banks 147.730
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2. Social Sector

Employees/Workers’ salaries/Wages 235.782
We have provided an employment to 942 permanent workers on an average

during the financial year. 942 families with an average 5 family members (in
the most affected area of KPK province) the employment cost comes to
approx. Rs.236 million.

Appointment of Auditors

The company's present auditor's M/s Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered
Accountants H.M House 7-bank square Lahore, retire and are eligible, to offer
themselves for reappointment. The Board and Board Audit Committee have
recommended that the retiring auditors be re-appointed until the conclusion of the next

Annual General meeting.

Acknowledgement

The board places on record its appreciation for the continued support extended to us
by our customers, suppliers, bankers and other stake holders. The valuable services
rendered by our work force and management are also gratefully acknowledged.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Shoal, Adynerd letan " y

Shoaib Ahmad Khan Muhammad Iftikhar Ali
Director Chief Executive Officer

Dated: September 24, 2020
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SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Spindles installed

Average spindles worked during the year

Production for the year/period

Average count spun during the year/period

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Operating Profit / (Loss)

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Profit / (Loss) after taxation

Earming/ (loss) per share-restated

BALANCE SHEET
Shareholders' equity (excluding

surplus on revaluation of fixed assets)

Term finance certificates

Demand finances/bills payable/Long term finances

Liabilties against assets subject to finance lease

Operating fixed assets

Additions in fixed assets

Cunent assets

Current liabilties

Break up value per share

Employees at year end

Nos

Nos

Lbs in
million

Rupees in
million

Rupees in
million
%
Rupees in
million
%
Rupees in
million
%
Rupees in
million
%

Rupees

Rupees
in million

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

-do-

Rupees

Nos.

L
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[ 2014 ][ 2015 ][ 2016 ][ 2017 || 2018 ][ 2019 ][ 2020 |
53040 53040 53040 53040 50,160 53256 53,340
51,905 50,777 49508 49,566 49212 50464 41,397
10372 10447 8.995 9418 8497 9007 4802
51.30 49,08 56.38 54,51 58.86  57.87  63.66

1,927.396 1757.969 1,444.247 1649638 1,890.012 2218285 1,548.962
233713 (6.285) 31481 55008  (33522) 121480 (118.061)
12.13 (0.36) 218 334 (.77) 548 (7.62)
142465  (76.329) (23.351)  (22.863) (112.759)  19.901 (226.820)
7.39 (4.34) (1.62) (1390 (5.97) 090  (14.64)
113915  (123.803)  (49.850)  (48.121) (84477) (95.379) (374.550)
5.91 (7.04) (3.45) 292)  (447)  (430)  (24.18)
82020  (84.199)  (12472)  (29.206) (84.439) (30.018) (387.598)
426 4.79) (0.86) (1.78) (447  (176)  (25.02)
246 (23.05) (341) (802)  (23.12)  (10.68) (106.13)
673.113  607.030  587.400 520041 444799 422643  77.182
16.474 . - - - - .
23.323 . - - 73344 238521  201.187

- 50386 33052  13.824 - - .

1374837 1350262 1557.748 1,522610 1,584.212 1,714.667 1,681.485
120706  107.328  49.039 24319  80.842 215022  49.607
698.576  407.79 457202 723756 815533 1,063.252  532.353
571684 346710 467423 771525 1,037.531 1,407.826 1,203.320
18431 16621 16631 16471 37252 36186  270.74
1,285 1,495 1,190 1,201 1001 1072 984
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Pattern of Shareholding As At June 30, 2020

Number of Shareholding Shares Percentage
Shareholders From To Held
1,036 1 100 25,684 0.70
365 101 500 84,606 2.32
82 501 1,000 57,849 1.58
80 1,001 5,000 159,337 4.36
16 5,001 10,000 100,093 2.74
4 10,001 15,000 54,810 1.50
2 15,001 20,000 36,213 0.99
2 20,001 25,000 44,281 1.21
1 25,001 30,000 29,052 0.80
1 40,001 45,000 40,576 1.11
1 55,001 60,000 57,638 1.58
1 80,001 85,000 80,578 2.21
1 140,001 145,000 144,421 3.95
1 585,001 590,000 587,193 16.08
1 870,001 875,000 872,600 23.89
1 1,275,001 1,280,000 1,277,247 34.97
1,595 3,652,178 100.00

* Note: The slabs representing nil holding have been omitted.

No. of Sh
Categories of Shareholders ° T-Iel dares Percentage
Director's, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Children 24,862 0.68
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 2,066,499 56.58
NIT & ICP 82,062 2.25

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non- Banking

Financial Institutions 3,089 0.08
Insurance Companies 57 0.00
Modarabas & Mutual Funds 1,150 0.03
General Public (Local) 1,450,139 39.71
Other Companies 22,592 0.62
Administrator Abandoned Properties 1,728 0.05
3,652,178 100.00
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Categories of Shareholder’s As At June 30, 2020

SR #] CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS | SHARES HELD| PERCENTAGE

1 Director's, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Children

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak (Chief Executive Officer) 13,982 0.383
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan (Director) 2,960 0.081
Dr. Hamid Zeb Khan (Director) 918 0.025
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak (Director) 2 0.000
Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak (Director) 6,992 0.191
Mr. Muhammad Omer Khan Afridi (Director) 2 0.000
Mr. Zahid Said (Director) 2 0.000
Mr. Amin Ullah Khan (Director) 2 0.000
Mr. Ahad Khattak (Director) 2 0.000

2 Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties

Bannu Woollen Mills Limited 144,421 3.954
Bibojee Services (Pvt) Limited 1,277,247 34.972
Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Limited 587,193 16.078
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan 57,638 1.578
3 NIT&ICP
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1,291 0.035
CDC- Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 80,578 2.206
IDBP (ICP UNIT) 193 0.005

4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking
Finance Institutions 3,089 0.085

5 Insurance Companies

The New Jubilee Insurance Co Ltd 57 0.002

6 Modarabas & Mutual Funds

First UDL Modaraba 1,150 0.031
7 General Public (Local) 1,450,139 39.706
8 Others Companies 22,592 0.619
9 Administrator Abandoned Properties 1,728 0.047

3,652,178 100.00

10 SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 05% OR MORE

Bibojee Services (Pvt) Limited 1,277,247 34.972
Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Limited 587,193 16.078
Mr. Sameer Randhawa 872,600 23.893
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Babri Cotton Mills Limited (the Company) has complied with the requirements of the
Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are nine as per the following:
a) Male 8
b) Female 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Appointed on Retired on

Independent |Mr. Zahid Said July 17, 2020
Directors Mr. Omar Khan Afridi July 17, 2020
Mr. Ahad Khattak Oct. 17, 2019 |July 17, 2020
Mr. Amin Ullah Khan Oct. 17, 2019 |July 17, 2020
Other Dr. Hamid Zeb Khan Oct. 17,2019 |July 17, 2020
Non-executive (Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan
Directors Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak July 17, 2020
Executive Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak July 17, 2020
Directors Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak July 17, 2020
Female Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak July 17, 2020
Director

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepareda Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developeda vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their dates of approval or updating is
maintained by the Company.

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevantmatters
have been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevantprovisions
of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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9. Three of our directors have already completed the Directors' Training Program (the
Program) and three directors have obtained exemption from it. Remaining three
directors will undertake the program within the stipulated time.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.
Mr. Naeem ullah Malikwas appointedas Company Secretary with effect from January
27, 2020 and Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from April 30, 2020 after
resignation of Mr. Muhammad Ali Wagar and Mr. Noor-un-Nabiwith effect from January
06, 2020 and April 30, 2020, respectively.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee
a) Mr. Zahid Said Chairman
b) Mr. Amin Ullah Khan Member

c) Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

a) Mr. Omar Khan Afridi Chairman
b) Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Member
c) Mr. Zahid Said Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per the following:
a) Audit Committee 4 quarterly meetings
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 1 annual meeting

156. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which is considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they
and the partners of the firm involvedin the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company.
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17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointedto
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any
other regulatory requirements and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

Shoal, Ay Ktan y

Shoaib Ahmad Khan Muhammad Iftikhar Ali
Director Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BABRI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
( Code of Corporate Governance ) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
BABRI COTTON MILLS LIMITED (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to reviewwhether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A reviewis limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

We highlight below an instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations:

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company also holds the office of the Company

Secretary.
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO,,
LAHORE; September 24, 2020 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BABRI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of BABRI COTTON MILLS LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial stalements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
of our report, and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of
the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Fresh revaluation of buildings and plant & machinery as at June 30, 2020 has revealedthat fair market
values of these fixed assets on the aforementioned date were lower by Rs.132.607 million as
compared to their carrying values.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw atiention to note 27.1 to the financial statements, which describes the matler regarding non-
provisioning of Gas Infrastructure DevelopmentCess aggregating Rs.345.261 million demanded by Sui
Northern Gas Pipelines Lid. Qur report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 1.2 in the financial statements, which indicates that the operations of the
Company are closed since March, 2020; accumulated loss aggregated Rs.64.468 million and the
Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.670.967 million on the reporting date.
These events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.



Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Following are the key audit matters:

L
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S.No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Impact of COVID-19

As disclosed in note 45 to the financial

statements, the COVID-19 pandemic
caused significant and unprecedented
curtaiiment in economic and social

activities from March, 2020 in line with
directives of the Government. This situation
posed a range of business and financial

challenges to the businesses globally and|_

across various sectors of the economy in
Pakistan.

In relation to the accounting and reporting
the
assessed the impact of COVID-19 related

obligations, management  has

events on its financial statements. The
management has assessed the accounting
implications of these developments on
these financial statements, including but
not limited to the following areas:

- the impairment of tangible assets under
IAS 36, ‘Impairment of non-financial assets;

- the net realisable value (NRV) of inventory
under IAS 2, ‘Inventories’;

- deferred taxation in accordance with IAS
12, ‘Income taxes’;

- provisions and contingent liabilities under
IAS 37 ; and

- going congern assumption used for the
preparation of these financial statements.

In view of the unique nature of this event]
and its possible impacts on the business
operations and financial reporting, we
considered this area as a key audit matter
to identify specific risks in relation to the
financial statements and devise our audit

.strategy accordingly.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
the following:

obtained an overall understanding of the impact
on the financial reporting process and underlying
controls in order to determine the appropriate
audit strategy;

assessed the authenticity of the confirmations
received;

checked subsequent recoveries, on a sample
basis, and assessed the reasonableness of
forward-looking factors used by the management|
in determination of expected credit loss fortrade
debts;

- evaluated whether any impairment indicators exist

that could trigger impairment for tangible assets;

evaluated management's assessment as to
whether any provisions were required to be
recorded as result of COVID-19;

checked the
computation;
checked the reasonableness of the inputs used
for calculation of NRV of inventories held to
assess the adequacy of relevant provisions;

accuracy of deferred tax

evaluated management's going  concern
assessment by reviewing the future projections
and assessed whether going concern assumption
is appropriate; and

checked the adequacy of the disclosures made
by the Company under the applicable finangcial
reporting framework.
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

. |Valuation of stock-in-trade

. |Contingencies

The value of stock-in-trade at the reporting
date aggregated Rs.430.898 million
representing 81% of the Company's total
current assets. Stock-in-trade at the
reporting date mainly included raw
materials and finished goods (note 9).

The valuation of finished goods at cost has
different components, which includes
judgment and assumptions in relation to
the allocation of labour and other various|
overheads incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
conditions. Judgment has also been
exercised by the management in
determining the net realisable value of]
finished goods.

We identified this as key audit matter in
our audit due to the
assumptions applied by the Company in
determining the cost and net realisable

judgment and

value of stock-in-trade at the reporting date.

The Company is subject to material
litigations  involving different  Courts
pertaining to taxation and other matters,
which require management to make
assessments and judgments with respect
to likelihood and impact of such litigations

on the financial statements of the
Company.
The management has engaged
independent legal counsels on these
matters.

The assessment of provisioning against
such litigations is a complex exercise and
requires significant judgments to determine
the level of certainty on these matters.

The details of contingencies along with
management's assessments are disclosed
in note 27 to the financial statements.

We  assessed the  appropriateness  off
management assumptions applied in calculating
the value of stock-in-trade and validated the
valuation by taking following steps:

- assessed whether the Company's accounting
policy for inventory valuation is in line with the
applicable financial reporting standards;

- attended inventory count at the year-end and
reconciled physical inventory with inventory lists
provided to ensure completeness of data;

- assessed historical cost recorded in inventoryj]
valuation by checking purchase invoices on
sample basis;

- tested reasonability of assumptions applied by
the management in allocation of labour and other,
various overhead costs to inventories;

- assessed the management's determination of net
realisable value of inventories by performing tests
on sale prices secured by the Company for|
similar items; and

- performed net realisable value test to assess
whether cost of inventories exceeded its net
realisable value by detailed review of subsequent
sale invoices.

In response to this matter, we performed following

audit procedures:

- discussed legal cases with the internal legal
department of the Company to understand the
management's view point, obtained and reviewed
the litigation documents to assess the facts and
circumstances;

- obtained opinions from legal counsels dealing
with such cases in the form of confirmations;

- evaluated the possible outcome of these legal
cases in line with the requirements of IAS 37
(Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets); and

- disclosures of legal exposures and provisions
were assessed for completeness and accuracy.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIXof 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIXof 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Nafees ud din.

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.,
LAHORE; September 24, 2020 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
ASSETS Note Rupees in thousand
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,681,485 1,714,667
Investments in an Associated Company 6 234,288 228,654
Long term loans 7 200 41
Security deposits 1,033 1,033
1,917,006 1,944,395
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 8 23,951 31,466
Stock-in-trade 9 430,898 885,385
Trade debts 10 6,406 308
Loans and advances 1" 12,849 11,515
Prepayments 2,751 1,577
Other receivables 12 5,887 2,895
Sales tax refundable 13 0 79,971
Income tax refundable, advance tax
and tax deducted at source 45,222 47,183
Cash and bank balances 14 4,389 2,952
532,353 1,063,252
TOTAL ASSETS 2,449,359 3,007,647
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Authorised capital 15 250,000 250,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16 36,522 36,522
Capital reserves
- share premium 17 15,096 15,096
- revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment 18 911,638 898,868
Revenue reserves
- general reserve 17 88,000 88,000
- gain on remeasurement of forward foreign
exchange contracts 17 2,032 2,139
- (Accumulated loss) / unappropriated profit (64,468) 280,886
Shareholders’ equity 988,820 1,321,511
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 19 174,580 186,718
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 20 73,431 81,520
Long term deposit 21 0 868
Deferred taxation 22 9,208 9,208
257,219 278,314
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 434,527 373,283
Unclaimed dividends 2,431 2,431
Accrued interest / mark-up 24 46,848 33,407
Short term finances 25 669,673 929,483
Current portion of long term finances 19 26,607 51,803
Taxation 26 23,234 17,415
1,203,320 1,407,822
Total liabilities 1,460,539 1,686,136
Contingencies and commitments 27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,449,359 3,007,647

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shoads Aol Khoan W

Muhammad Iftikhar Ali Shoaib Ahmad Khan Naeem Ullah Malik
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Sales 28 1,548,962 2,218,285
Cost of sales 29 1,667,023 2,096,805
Gross (loss) / profit (118,061) 121,480
Distribution cost 30 11,851 16,539
Administrative expenses 31 92,441 88,363
Other expenses 32 7,788 340
Other income 33 (3,321) (3,663)
108,759 101,579
(Loss) / profit from operations (226,820) 19,901
Finance cost 34 147,730 115,890
(374,550) (95,989)
Share of (loss) / profit of an Associated Company 6 (7,235) 610
Loss before taxation (381,785) (95,379)
Taxation 35 (5,813) (56,361)
Loss after taxation (387,598) (39,018)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
- gain on remeasurement of staff
retirement benefit obligation 20 7,600 233
- impact of tax (2,204) (68)
5,396 165
- surplus arisen upon revaluation of property,
plant and equipment 54 40,877 0
- deferred taxation 18.3 (4,128) 0
36,749 0
- share of other comprehensive income
of an Associated Company 14,284 54
- impact of tax (4,142) (16)
6 10,142 38
52,287 203
Total comprehensive loss (335,311) (38,815)
--------- Rupees ===s=x==-
Loss per share 36 (106.13) (10.68)

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shoads Aol Khoan W

Muhammad Iftikhar Ali Shoaib Ahmad Khan Naeem Ullah Malik
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020 2019
(Rupees in thousand)
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year - before taxation and share of (loss) /

profit of an Associated Company (374,550) (95,989)
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation 70,995 66,906

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 7,369 0

Amortisation of gain on forward foreign exchange contracts (107) (106)

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity (net) (489) 3,359

Finance cost 147,177 113,994
(Loss) / profit before working capital changes (149,605) 88,164

Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools 7,515 8,100
Stock-in-trade 454,487 (212,991)
Trade debts (6,098) 61
Loans and advances (1,334) (2,844)
Prepayments (1,174) 260
Other receivables (2,992) 1,815
Sales tax refundable 79,971 (45,426)
Increase in trade and other payables 61,244 100,735
591,619 (150,290)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 442,014 (62,126)
Taxes paid (4,365) (19,365)
Long term loans - net (159) 494
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 437,490 (80,997)
Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed capital expenditure - net (18,981)| | (197,361)
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 14,676 0
Security deposits 0 76
Long term deposit (868) 868
Net cash used in investing activities 5,173) (196,417)
Cash flows from financing activities
Long term finances - net (37,334) 164,781
Short term finances - net (259,810) 203,355
Finance cost paid (133,736) (95,913)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (430,880) 272,223
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,437 (5,191)
Cash and cash equivalents- at beginning of the year 2,952 8,143
Cash and cash equivalents- at end of the year 4,389 2,952

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shoads v Knan -
Muhammad Iftikhar Ali Shoaib Ahmad Khan Naeem Ullah Malik
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Capital Reserves Revenue Reserves
Revaluati- .
on surplus Gain on
har har h in nappr-
S a.e S a.e on General edg U app Total
capital | premium g opriated profit
property, | reserve | .
reserve instru- | /(accumul-
plant and
. ments | ated loss)
equipment

Rupees in thousand
Balance as at June 30, 2018 36,522 15,096 915,635 88,000 2,245 302,936 1,360,434

Total comprehensive loss for
the year ended June 30, 2019:

- loss for the year 0 0 0 0 0 (39,018) (39,018)
- other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 0 203 203
0 0 0 0 0 (38,815) (38,815)

Amortisation of gain on forward
foreign exchange contracts 0 0 0 0 (106) 0 (106)

Transfer from revaluation surplus
on property, plant and equipment
on account of incremental
depreciation for the year

(net of deferred taxation) 0 0 (14,722) 0 0 14,722 0
Share of revaluation surplus on

property, plant and equipment of

an Associated Company 0 0 (2,045) 0 0 0 (2,045)
Effect of items directly credited

in equity by an Associated

Company 0 0 0 0 0 2,043 2,043
Balance as at June 30, 2019 36,522 15,096 898,868 88,000 2,139 280,886 1,321,511
Total comprehensive loss for

the year ended June 30, 2020:

- loss for the year 0 0 0 0 0 (387,598) (387,598)

- other comprehensive income 0 0 36,749 0 0 15,538 52,287

0 0 36,749 ] 0 (372,060) (335,311)

Amortisation of gain on forward

foreign exchange contracts 0 0 0 ] (107) 0 (107)
Transfer from revaluation surplus

on property, plant and equipment

(net of deferred taxation)

- on account of incremental

depreciation for the year 0 0 (14,711) 0 0 14,711 0

- upon sale of revalued assets 0 0 (7,335) 0 0 7,335 0
Share of revaluation surplus on

property, plant and equipment

of an Associated Company 0 0 (1,933) 0 0 0 {1,933)
Effect of items directly credited

in equity by an Associated

Company 0 0 0 0 0 4,660 4,660
Balance as at June 30, 2020 36,522 15,096 911,638 88,000 2,032 (64,468) 988,820

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shoad Mnard K hn W

Muhammad Iftikhar Ali Shoaib Ahmad Khan Naeem Ullah Malik
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 Babri Cotton Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 26,
1970 as a Public Company under the Companies Act, 1813 (now the Companies Act,
2017) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company is
principally engaged in manufacture and sale of yarn. The Company's registered office
and Mills are located at Habibabad, Kohat.

1.2 These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis despite the
uncertainties detailed below that may cast doubt about the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern:

(a) the Company's production facilities are closed since March, 2020;

(b) the Company has accumulated losses aggregating Rs.64.468 million and current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.670.967 million; and

(c) the Company's financial ratios are adverse.

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis by the

management for the reasons as detailed below:

(a) the management intends to resume partial production activities by the end of
October, 2020;

(b) the management has contacted different yarn consumers and agents for sale of
finished goods inventory of the Company and it is expected that complete finished
goods inventory will be sold by December, 2020;

{c) the managementis negotiatingwith Company's banks to arrange additionalfinance
facilities based on corporate guarantees of the Board members;

(d) the sponsor Directors are considering to provide sub-ordinated loans to the
Company to ease its liquidity problems; and

(e) the management is negotiating with the Company’s trade debtors and they have
agreed to settle their balances by the end of October, 2020.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicablein Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.
2.2 Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except where otherwise specifically stated.
2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial
statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Allfinancial information has been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless
otherwise stated.
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2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlyingassumptions are reviewed on an on-goingbasis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting
policies are as follows:

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and
equipment. - notes 4.1 & 5.1.

- Provision for impairment of inventories - notes 4.3, 4.4, 8 & 9.

- Allowance for expected credit loss - note 4.5.

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories - note 4.7.
- Staff retirement benefits (gratuity) - notes 4.9 & 20.

- Estimation of provisions - note 4.11.

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - notes 4.12 & 27

- Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred
tax asset (for carried forward tax losses) - notes 4.13, 22 & 26.

The revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3. INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS
TO EXISTING STANDARDS

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are
applicable to the Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginningon
or after the following dates:

3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to accounting and reporting
standards that became effective during the year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRSs are effective for
accounting periods beginningon July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevantor
to have any significant effect on the Company’s operations (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these
financial statements, except for the following:

(a) Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ on plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement’, are effective for periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019. These
amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service
cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement; and recognise in statement of profit or loss as part of past service cost, or
a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendments do
not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

L e e [ [ ]
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(b) IAS 23, 'Borrowing costs' is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
January 01, 2019. The amendment is part of the annualimprovement 2015-2017 cycle.
The amendment clarifies that the general borrowings pool used to calculate eligible
borrowing costs exclude only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying assets that
are still under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to
specifically finance qualifyingassets that are now ready for their intended use or sale -
or any non-qualifyingassets - are included in that general pool. The amendments do not
have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(c) Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’ are effective for
annual periods beginningon or after January 01, 2019. The amendments clarify that a
venture capital organizationand other similar entities may elect to measure investments
in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or
joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore,
similar election is availableto non-investment entity that has an interestin an associate
or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain
the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election
is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The
amendments do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(d) IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2019. This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and
measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied where there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to recognise and
measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is
uncertainty over a tax treatment. An uncertain tax treatmentis any tax treatment applied
by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by
the tax authority. The IFRIC applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where there
is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the
tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. The
amendments do not have any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3.2 Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective
There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRSs and interpretations that are
mandatory for Companies having accounting periods beginning on or after July 01,
2020, but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Company’s operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements,
except for the following:

(@) Amendments to IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements' and IAS 8, 'Accounting
policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors' are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2020. The amendments are intended to make the
definition of material in 1AS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the
underlying concept of materiality in IFRSs. In addition, the IASB has also issued
guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs.

(b) The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the Conceptual Framework) in March 2018, which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for preparers of financial statements who develop
accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard
or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to
assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting
policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand
and interpret the standards.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are the same as those appliedin the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

4.1 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land, buildings on freehold
land, plant & machinery, generators and capital work-in-progress are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Freehold land is stated at revalued amount whereas buildings on freehold land, plant &
machinery and generators are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Cost of some items of plant &
machinery consists of historical cost and exchange fluctuation effects on foreign
currency loans capitalised during prior years. Borrowing costs are also capitalised for
the period upto the date of commencement of commercial production of the respective
plant & machinery, acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease
previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in
profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributableto the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax,
is reclassified from the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to retained earning.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost or revalued amount of assets (other
than freehold land and capital work-in-progress) over their remaining useful lives, using
the reducing balance method at rates specified in note 5.1 to the financial statements.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in
which an asset is acquired or capitalised while no depreciationis charged for the month
in which the asset is disposed-off.

Disposal

Gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset andis recognised in otherincome in the statement of profit or loss. In case of
the sale or retirement of a revalued property, plant and equipment, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

Judgment and estimates

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular
basis. The effect of any change in estimates is accounted for on a prospective basis.



4.2

4.3

4.4

Investments in Associated Companies

Investments in Associated Companies are accounted for by using equity basis of
accounting, under which the investments in Associated Companies are initially
recognised at cost and the carrying amounts are increased or decreased to recognise
the Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies after the date of
acquisition. The Company's share of profit or loss of the Associated Companies is
recognised in the Company's profit or loss. Distributions received from Associated
Companies reduce the carrying amount of investments. Adjustments to the carrying
amounts are also made for changes in the Company's proportionate interest in the
Associated Companies arising from changes in the Associated Companies' equity that
have not been recognised in the Associated Companies' profit or loss. The Company's
share of those changes is recognised directly in equity of the Company.

The carrying amount of investments is tested for impairment, by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell) with its
carrying amount and loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventory is based on moving average cost. Items in transit are stated at
cost accumulated upto the statement of financial position date. The Company reviews
the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is
made for identified obsolete and slow moving items.
Stock-in-trade
Basis of valuation are as follows:

Particulars Mode of valuation

Raw materials

- at mills - At lower of annual average cost and net realisable value.
- in transit - At cost accumulated to the reporting date.
Work-in-process - At cost

Finished goods - At lower of cost and net realisable value.

Waste - At net realisable value.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods consists of prime cost and
appropriate production overheads. Prime cost is allocated on the basis of moving
average cost.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade is determined based on the
management's assessment regarding their future usability.

Net realisable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less
cost of completion and cost necessary to be incurred to effect such sale.

Judgments and estimates

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical
experience and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantlyas a result of
changes in market conditions. A review is made periodically on inventories for excess
inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is
recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

L
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4.5 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognised at original invoice amount, which is the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less
allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL). Carrying amounts of trade debts and other
receivables are assessed at each reporting date and allowance is made for doubtful
debts and receivables when collection of the amount is no longer probable. Debts and
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalentsare carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For
the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash-in-
hand and balances with banks.

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories
The assets that are subject to depreciation are assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there

is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an

indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, unless the relevantasset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the reversal
immediately in the statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount in accordance with the revaluation model. Any reversal of an impairment loss of
a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

4.8 Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initiallyat fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are

capitalised as part of the

cost of that asset.

4.9 Staff retirement benefits (defined benefit plan)
The Company operates an un-funded retirement gratuity scheme for its eligible
employees. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover obligation under the
scheme in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Latest actuarial valuation
was conducted on June 30, 2020 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an

independent Actuary.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which these occur and past-service costs are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss.

4.10 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid
Company.
4.11 Provisions

in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation as a result of

past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the obligationcan be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.



4.12 Contingent liabilities
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A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligationthat arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
requiredto settle the obligation,or the amount of the obligationcannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

4.13 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss exceptto the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if
any, in which case the tax amounts are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income or equity.
(@) Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income / turnover for the year;
calculated using rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period. The calculation of

current tax takes into account tax credits and tax rebates, if

any, and is inclusive of any adjustment to income tax payable or recoverable in respect

of previous years.
(b) Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation using the liability method on temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability is recognised for taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss except for deferred tax arising on
surplus on revaluationof property, plantand equipment, which is charged to revaluation

surplus.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities,and they relate to income taxes levied by

the same tax authority.

4.14 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriationto reserves are
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

4.15 Derivative financial instruments

In relation to fair value hedges, which meet the conditions for special hedge accounting,
any gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on the hedged item

attributable to the hedged

risk is adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged

item and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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In relation to cash flow hedges, if a hedge of a forecast transaction which subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financialasset, the associated gains and losses (that
were recognised directly in equity) are taken to statement of profit or loss in the same
period during which the asset acquired effects the profit or loss.

4.16 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company
looses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial
liabilities are derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or
losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to the
statement of profit or loss.

a) Financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
i) amortised cost where the effective interest rate method is applied;
ii) fair value through profit or loss; and
ii) fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of
profit or loss or other comprehensive income (OCI).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Further, financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantiallyall
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables
that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developedinternallyor obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikelyto pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Company).
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a historical as well as forward-lookingbasis, the expected
credit loss (ECL) as associated with its trade debts. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Cash and bank balances

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach.
The measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weightedamount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. The assessment of no reasonable expectation of recovery is based on
unavailabilityof debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient future cash
flows to repay the amount.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off will result in impairment gains.
b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

i) fair value through profit or loss; and
i) other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of other financial
liabilities also include directly attributable transaction costs. The subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

i) Fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

ii)  Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss for the year, when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through effective interest rate amortisation process.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presentedin the statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amount and there is an intentionto settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

4.17 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are taken to statement of profit or loss.

4.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at the point in time when the
performance obligation is satisfied i.e. control of the goods is transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those goods.

Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before
payment is due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Others
Return on deposits is accounted for on 'accrual basis'.

Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when right to receive
such dividend and bonus shares is established.

4.19 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its
internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment; however, certain information about the Company’s products, as required by
the approved accounting standards, is presented in note 42 to these financial Staternents

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Operating fixed assets 51 1,681,485 1,684,041
Capital work-in-progress 5.9 0 30,626

1,681,485 1,714,667
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51 Operating fixed assets

Roads, Buildings on freehold land c
paths and Tools |Fumit- [ . ;’:‘pu' Securi
Freehold | culverts Residential | piantg |Generat-| & |ures |Office | ters |Security Vehic- || Total
land on Factory Ner - machinery ors equip- | fixtur- equx:t- and &“s urvel- A les
freehold factory | o cers | workers ment | es | MoM |dccussy lance
land ories
Rupees In th d

As at June 30, 2018
Cost / revaluation 460,600 120 193,236 22,963 1,011 19,896 913,702 173,381 2,465 4,286 993 2,458 1,367 144 22,889 1,819,511
Accumulated
depreciation 0 106 18,841 2,239 208 5,796 170,727 68,826 1,402 2,010 326 1,313 260 48 11,484 283,586
Book value 460,600 14 174,395 20,724 803 14,100 742,975 104,555 1,063 2,276 667 1,145 1,107 96 11,405 1,535,925
Year ended
June 30, 2019:
Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 207,003 7,465 27 28 71 428 0o 0 0 215,022
Depraclation for
the year 0 1 8720 1,036 41 705 42,958 10,517 54 114 35 295 144 5 2,281 66,906
Book value 460,600 13 165,675 19,688 762 13,395 907,020 101,503 1,036 2,190 703 1,278 963 91 9,124 1,684,041
Year ended
June 30, 2020:
Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,625 8,569 308 77 28 0 (V] 0 49,607
Revaluation adjustments
Cost / revaluation 26,640 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0o o0 0 26,640
Depreciation 0 0 1215 2,981 0 1,469  (22,495) 31,067 0 0 0 0 0o 0 0 14,237
Disposals:
Cost / revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 (29,267) 0 0 0 0 (87 0 0 (6684 (36,038)
Depreciation 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,722 0 0 0 0 56 0 0 2215 13,993
Depreciation for
the year 0 i 8,252 1,087 38 719 45,015 13,471 58 110 35 3N 272 4 1,562 70,995
Book value 487,240 12 158,638 21,582 724 14,145 862,590 127,668 1,286 2,157 696 876 691 87 3,093 1,681,485
As at June 30, 2019

Cost / revaluation 460,600 120 193,236 22,963 1,011 19,896 1,120,705 180,846 2,492 4,314 1,064 2,886 1,367 144 22,889 2,034,533

Accumulated

depreciation 0 107 27,561 3,275 249 6,501 213,685 79,343 1,456 2,124 361 1,608 404 53 13,765 350,492
Book value 460,600 13 165,675 19,688 762 13,395 907,020 101,503 1,036 2,190 703 1,278 963 91 9,124 1,684,041
As at June 30, 2020

Cost / revaluation 487,240 120 193,236 22,963 1,011 19,896 1,132,063 189,415 2,800 4,391 1,092 2,799 1,367 144 16,205 2,074,742

Accumulated
depreciation 0 108 34,598 1,381 287 5,751 269,473 61,747 1,514 2,234 396 1,923 676 57 13,112 393,257
Book value 487,240 12 158,638 21,582 724 14,145 862,590 127,668 1,286 2,157 696 876 691 87 3,093 1,681,485
Depreciation rate (%) 5 5 5 5 5 5 10 5 5 5 30 30 5 20
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5.2 Freeholdland represents 715,904 square feet of land situated at HabibabadKohat out of
which approximately 339,141 square feet represent covered area.

5.3 The depreciation rates of computers & accessories and security & surveillance
equipmentwere increased in previous year to 30% from 5% per annum with effect from
February 28, 2019. The effect of this change in depreciationrates had increased loss for
the preceding year and lowered carrying values of property, plant and equipment by Rs. 126 thousand.

5.4 Revaluationsurplus on each class of assets, as a result of latest revaluationas detailed
in note 18.3, has been determined as follows:

Buildings on frechold land
Freehold Facto Non- | Resid- | Plant& | Gener- Total
Particulars land i factory | ential | machinery| ators

-------------------- Rupees in thousand == === ==eccuauaann.

Cost/ revaluation as at
September 30, 2019 460,600 193,236 22963 19,895 1,121,806 187,578 2,006,078

Accumulated depreciation to
September 30, 2019 0 29,632 3,521 6,668 225034 81,993 346,848

Book value before
revaluation adjustments
as at September 30, 2019 460,600 163,604 19,442 13,227 896,772 105585 1,659,230

Revalued amounts 487,240 164,819 22423 14,696 874,277 136,652 1,700,107

Revaluation surplus / (deficit) 26,640 1,215 2,981 1,469  (22,495) 31,067 40,877

5.5 Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying
amounts of each revalued class of operating fixed assets would have been as follows:

2020 2019
Owned (Rupees in thousand)
- freehold land 3,642 3,642
- buildings on freehold land 54,953 57,817
- plant & machinery 657,543 659,293
- generators 97,426 99,834
813,564 820,586

5.6 Based on the revaluationreport dated November 25, 2019, the forced sale values of the
revalued items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Rupees in

thousand
Freehold land 389,792
Buildings on freehold land 161,550
Plant & machinery and generators 758,197
1,309,539
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5.7 Depreciation for the year has been 2020 2019
apportioned as under: (Rupees in thousand)
- cost of sales 67,682 63,887
- administrative expenses 3,313 3,019
70,995 66,906
5.8 Disposal of operating fixed assets:
Accum-
Particulars Cost :l:t:: 3;:: S:l::;o ((5lzisns)l Sold through negotiation to
ciation
Plant & machinery [ ----- Rupees in thousand - - - - - |
4 Howa Cards 1,382 399 983 1,394 411 Hameed & Sons, Faisalabad.
7 SACM Cards 1,261 688 573 1,669 1,096 ~=do----
1 Chinese Comber 4,289 2,100 2,189 280 (1,909) Noshad Textile Machinery
Traders, Faisalabad.
5 Ring Frames Toyoda 5671 3,309 2362 2525 163 ==do=u=-
Savio Orion Cone Winder 11,416 3,486 7,930 1,250 (6,680) Sultan Associates, Faisalabad.
4 Ring Frames 5248 1,740 3,508 1,880 (1,628) Shangai Traders, Faisalabad.
29,267 11,722 17,545 8,998 (8,547)
Computers and accessories
Laptop HP 87 56 3 45 14 Mr. Noor un Nabi, {(Ex Chief
Operating Officer).
Vehicle
Toyota Fortuner 6,684 2215 4,469 5633 1,164 --do----
2020 36,038 13,993 22,045 14,676 (7,369)
2019 0 0 0 0 0
5.9 Capital work-in-progress 2020 2019
(Rupees in thousand)
Opening balance 30,626 48,287
Additions during the year:
- plant and machinery 4,381 167,988
- computer software 0 800
4,381 168,788
35,007 217,075
Less:
- transferred during the year to plant and machinery (34,207) (186,449
- computer software cost expensed (800) 0
(35,007) (186,449)
Balance as at June 30, 0 30,626
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6. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY - Quoted 2020 2019
(Rupees in thousand)

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. (JDM)

341,000 (2019: 341,000) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each - cost 4,030 4,030

Equity held: 7.13% (2019: 7.13%)

Post acquisition profit and other comprehensive
income brought forward including effect of

items directly credited in equity by JDM 65,769 60,461

Share of revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment 161,582 163,515
(Loss) / profit for the year - net of taxation (7,235) 610
Share of other comprehensive income - net of taxation 10,142 38
234,288 228,654

6.1 Althoughthe Company has less than 20% votingrights in JDM as at June 30, 2020 and
2019, JDM has been treated an Associated Company by virtue of common directorships.

6.2 Marketvalue of the Company's investment in JDM as at June 30, 2020 was Rs.26.813
million (2019: Rs.21.142 miillion).

6.3 JDMwas incorporatedin Pakistan in the year 1960 as a Public Company and its shares
are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. It is principally engaged in manufacture and
sale of yarn.

The summary of financial information of JOM based on its audited financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees in thousand)
Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets 3,418,922 3,437,965
Current assets 1,633,393 1,244,097

5,052,315 4,682,062
Non-current liabilities 259,751 231,065
Current liabilities 1,497,225 1,204,244

1,756,976 1,435,309
Net assets 3,295,339 3,246,753
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Reconciliation to carrying amount 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Opening net assets 3,246,753 3,238,110
(Loss) / profit for the year (93,647) 6,296
Other comprehensive income for the year 142,310 537
Other adjustments (77) 1,810
Closing net assets 3,295,339 3,246,753

Company's share percentage 7.13% (2019: 7.13%)

Company's share 234,958 231,493

Miscellaneous adjustments (670) (2,839)
Carrying amount of investment 234,288 228,654

Summarised statement of profit or loss

Sales 2,754,564 3,379,664

(Loss) / profit before taxation (60,203) 41,272

(Loss) / profit after taxation (93,647) 6,296

6.4 The value of investments in JDM as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 is based on
independentvaluationcarried-out by M/s Aamir Salman Rizwan; Chartered Accountants
- a QCR rated firm, having office at 414-F, M.A. Johar Town, Lahore, engaged by the
management. The recoverable amount has been estimated based on value in use
calculations. These calculations have been made on discounted cash flow based
valuation methodology, which assumes gross profit margin of 10.55% (2019: 10.90%),
terminal growth rate of 3.25% (2019: 5%) and capital asset pricing model based
discount rate of 9.30% (2019: 12.38%).

7. LONG TERM LOANS - Secured

Interest free loans to:

- related parties - key management persons 7.1 305 260

- other employees 7.2 956 1,228
1,261 1,488

Less: current portion grouped under current assets 1,061 1,447
200 41

7.1 The year-end balance is recoverable in monthly instalments ending March, 2020.
Maximum aggregate amount of loans at any month-end during the year was Rs.472
thousand (2019: Rs.480 thousand).

7.2 These loans are recoverable in monthly instalments, which vary from employee to
employee and are adjustable against the gratuity benefits of the respective employee.

8. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 12,777 11,133
Spares 11,135 20,290
Loose tools 39 43

23,951 31,466
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9. STOCK-IN-TRADE 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Raw materials:
- at mills 9.1 359,803 708,747
- in transit 0 68,431
359,803 777,178
Work-in-process 21,000 51,436
Finished goods 9.2 50,095 56,771
430,898 885,385

9.1 Raw material inventories as at June 30, 2020 have been stated at net realisable value;
the amount charged to statement of profit or loss in respect of inventories write-down to
net realisable value worked-out to Rs.24.815 million approximately.

9.2 Finished good inventories as at June 30, 2020 include inventories costing Rs.45.376
million (2019: Rs.4.399 million), which have been stated at net realisable value; the
amount chargedto statement of profit or loss in respect of inventories write-down
to net realisable value worked-out to Rs.6.108 million (2019: Rs.0.290 million} approximately

9.3 Raw material and finished good inventories at respective year-ends were pledged with
National Bank of Pakistan and The Bank of Khyber as security for short term finance
facilities (note 25).

10. TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured

Balance at the year-end 6,825 2,598
Less: provision for impairment 101 419 2,290
6,406 308
10.1 Provision for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year 2,290 2,290
Allowance for the year 419 0
Reversal during the year (2,290) 0
Balance at end of the year 419 2,290
11. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Current portion of long term loans 7 1,061 1,447
Due from an Associated Company
(Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd.) 4,047 0
Advances (unsecured - considered good):
- employees 708 6,089
- contractors and suppliers 7,033 3,952
- against letters of credit 0 27
12,849 11,515
12. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Import letters of credit weight shortage claims 2,895 2,895
Balance of insurance claim receivable against loss
of stocks due to fire 2,992 0
5,887 2,895
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13. SALES TAX REFUNDABLE

The Company, during the year, has received sales tax refunds aggregating Rs.48.686
million pertainingto the period from January, 2018 to April, 2020. The aforesaid amounts
have been credited in the Company's bank account during September, 2019 and April,
2020. The remaining refundable balance of sales tax has been adjusted against sales
tax payable for the current year.

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cash at banks on:
- current accounts 3,374 228
- dividend accounts 850 23
- PLS account 14.1 142 2,570
- PLS security deposit account 141 23 131
4,389 2,952
141 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 3.25% to 10.25% (2019: 4.50% to 10.25%)
per annum.
15. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
2020 2019
---- Numbers ----
17,500,000 17,500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 175,000 175,000
7,500,000 7,500,000 Redeemable cumulative preference
shares of Rs.10 each 75,000 75,000
25,000,000 25,000,000 250,000 250,000

16. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2,896,000 2,896,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

fully paid in cash 28,960 28,960
434,400 434,400 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 4,344 4,344

321,778 321,778 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued to a Bank by conversion

of long term liabilities 3,218 3,218
3,652,178 3,652,178 36,522 36,522
16.1 Ordinary shares held by the Associated Companies 2020 2019
and an Associate at the year-end: ---- Numbers----
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Ltd. 1,277,247 1,277,247
Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. 144,421 144,421
Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. 587,193 587,493
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan 57,638 57,638

2,066,499 2,066,799
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17. RESERVES 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Capital reserve 171 15,096 15,096
General reserve 88,000 88,000
Gain on remeasurement of forward foreign
exchange contracts - cash flow hedge 2,032 2,139
105,128 105,235

17.1 This represents share premium received @ Rs.6 per share on 1,000,000 right shares
issued by the Company during the financial years ended September 30, 1992 &
September 30, 1993 and @ Rs.15 per share on 896,000 ordinary shares issued as
otherwise than right in accordance with the provisions of section 86(1) of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 during the financial year ended June 30, 2008. The
Company, during the financial year ended June 30, 2011, had issued 434,400 bonus
shares out of this reserve. This reserve can be utilised by the Company only for the
purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

18. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Net

Revaluation surplus on the Company's

property, plant and equipment 18.2 750,056 735,353

Share of revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment of an Associated Company 6 161,582 163,515
911,638 898,868

18.1 The Company had revalued its freehold land on September 30, 1998, September 30,
2004, January 31, 2007, June 27, 2009 and June 30, 2012. Buildings on freehold land,
plant & machinery and generators were revalued on September 30, 2004, January 31,
2007 and  June 30 2012. These fixed assets were revalued by IndependentValuers
on the basis of market value / depreciated market values and resulted in revaluation
surplus aggregating Rs.808.690 million.

18.2 The Company, as at June 30, 2016, had again revalued its freehold land, buildings on
freehold land, owned and leased plant & machinery and generators. This revaluation
exercise was carried-out by independentValuers - M/s Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Ltd.
(Consulting Engineers, Surveyors and Loss Adjusters, Valuation Consultants), 14 - Q,
Gulberg - 2, Lahore. Freehold land was revalued on the basis of current market value
whereas buildings on freehold land, plant & machinery and generators were revaluedon
the basis of depreciated market values. The net appraisal surplus arisen on this
revaluation aggregating Rs.209.017 million was credited to this account.

18.3 The Company, during the current financial year, has again revalued its freehold land,
buildings on freehold land, plant & machinery and generators. The revaluationexercise
has been carried-out by independentValuers - Hamid Mukhtar & Co,(Pvt.) Ltd., Lahore.
Freehold land has been revaluedon the basis of current market value whereas buildings
on freehold land, plant & machinery and generators have been revalued on the basis of
depreciated market values. The appraisal arisen on latest revaluation aggregating Rs.
40.877 million has been credited to this account. The year end balance has been arrived
at as follows:
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2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Opening balance 849,068 869,803
Add: surplus arisen on revaluation
carried-out during the year 54 40,877 0
Less: transferred to (accumulated loss) / unappropriated profit:
- on account of incremental depreciation for the year (20,719) (20,735)
- upon sale of revalued assets (10,332) 0
858,894 849,068
Less: deferred tax on:
- opening balance of surplus 113,715 119,728
- surplus arisen on revaluation carried-out during the year 4,128 0
- incremental depreciation for the year (6,008) (6,013)
- sale of revalued assets (2,997) 0
108,838 113,715
Closing balance 750,056 735,353
19. LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured
The Bank of Khyber (BoK)
- demand finance - | 19.1 121,792 151,416
- demand finance - II 19.2 30,840 38,550
Sindh Modaraba (SM)-diminishing musharaka 19.5 48,555 48,555
201,187 238,521
Less: current portion grouped under current liabilities
- demand finance - | 9,875 39,500
- demand finance - Il 2,570 10,280
- diminishing musharaka
- overdue instalments 2,023 0
- instalments due within next twelve months 12,139 2,023
26,607 51,803
174,580 186,718

19.1 These finances have been obtained to retire letters of credit established for import of
textile machinery for BMR. These finances carry mark-up at the rate of 6-months KIBOR
+ 2%, the effective mark-up rates charged by BoK during the year ranged from 15.13%
to 15.49% (2019: 9.04% to 12.80%) per annum. These finances are repayable in 48
equal monthly instalments commenced from May, 2019.

19.2 These finances have been obtained for acquisition of local textile machinery for BMR.
These finances carry mark-up at the rate 6-months KIBOR + 2%,; the effective mark-up
rates charged by BoK during the year ranged from 15.13% to 15.49% (2019: 9.04% to
12.80%) per annum. These finances are repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments
commenced from April, 2019.

19.3 The finances obtained from BoK are secured against first joint pari passu charge on
fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of three sponsoring directors of
the Company.
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19.4 The BokK, vide its letter bearing Ref. # BoK / RABC / 2020 / 3218 dated April 30, 2020,
has communicated its acceptance of the following:

- deferral of principal payments of DF-I and DF-II till March 31, 2021 under SBP
BPRD Circular No.13 of 2020 dated March 26, 2020;

- temporary extension in expiry of credit limits upto June 30, 2020;

- mark-up due on all short term and long term facilities for the quarter ended March
31, 2020 to be paid by the Company on or before May 31, 2020; and

- wavier of 2% penalty if mark-up on short term and long term facilities is paid on or
before May 31, 2020.

The BoK has also communicated the revised applicable repayment schedules.

19.5 These finances have been obtained from SM against aggregate limit of Rs.50 million for
the purpose of acquisition of plant and machinery. The facility tenor is five years and is
secured against title of assets in the name of SM, registered charge of Rs.48.555 million
over financed assets and personal guarantee of Ex-Chief Executive of the Company.
The finance facility carries profit at 3-months KIBOR + 2.90% per annum. The effective
profit rates during the year ranged from 11.44% to 16.76% (2019:14.01%) per annum.
The finance facility is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments with effect from May, 2020.

19.6 The Company, vide its letter bearing Ref. # BCM / (Acctt.) C - 1709 dated March 31,
2020, has requested SM as follows:

- principal instalments of the facility falling due from March, 2020 till next one year to
be deferred for a period of one year; and

- payment of mark-up on the facility to be relaxed as per the SBP's BPRD Circular 13
of 2020.

SM response for the above request of the Company is still awaited.
20. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - Gratuity

The future contribution rates of this scheme include allowance for deficit and surplus.
Projected unit credit method, based on the following significant assumptions, is used for

valuation:

Significant actuarial assumptions 2020 2019

- discount rate 8.50% 14.25%

- expected rate of growth per annum in future salaries 7.50% 13.25%

- average expected remaining working life time of employees 5 years 7 years

- mortality rates SLIC SLIC

2001-2005  2001-2005
Setback 1 year

- withdrawal rates Age-based Age-based

- retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

The amount recognised in the statement of 2020 2019
financial position is as follows: (Rupees in thousand)

Net liability at beginning of the year 81,520 78,326

Charge to statement of profit or loss 26,038 21,565

Experience adjustments (7,600) (233)

Payments made during the year (26,527) (18,138)

Net liability at end of the year 73,431 81,520
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201
20.2

21.

The movement in the present value of defined 2020 2019
benefit obligation is as follows: (Rupees in thousand)
Opening balance 81,520 78,326
Current service cost 16,312 15,332
Interest cost 9,726 6,233
Benefits paid (26,527) (18,138)
Experience adjustments (7,600) (233)
Closing balance 73,431 81,520

Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 16,312 15,332

Interest cost 9,726 6,233

Charge for the year 26,038 21,565

Charge for the year has been allocated to:

- cost of sales 22,133 18,330

- distribution cost 260 216

- administrative expenses 3,645 3,019
26,038 21,565

Remeasurement recognised in other

comprehensive income
Experience adjustments (net of deferred tax) 5,396 165

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligationand experience adjustments
on obligation for five years is as follows:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
--------------------- (Rupees in thousand) -——---—=—=-=-e-emmemu
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 73431 81,520 78,326 69,140 73,104
Experience adjustments
on obligation (7,600) (233) 14,401 (10,304) (533)

Year-end sensitivity analysis Impact on defined benefit obligation

Changes in Increase Decrease

assumption (Rupees in thousand)
Discount rate 1% 69,896 77,401
Salary growth rate 1% 77,603 69,644

The average duration of the benefit obligation as at June 30, 2020 is 5 years.

The expected contributionto defined benefit obligationfor the year ending June 30, 2021
is Rs.18.715 million.

LONG TERM DEPOSIT

This interest-free deposit was received in accordance with the Company's Car Incentive
Scheme and against this deposit vehicle was provided to the employee. This deposit
was adjusted during the year by transfer of title of vehicle to the employee.
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 140,902 148,311
- surplus on revaluation of property,
plant & equipment 108,838 113,715
249,740 262,026
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
- staff retirement benefits - gratuity (21,295) (23,641
- provision for doubtful debts (122) (664)
- minimum tax recoverable against
normal tax charge in future years (71,405) (87,417
- unused tax losses (253,440) (141,096
(346,262) (252,818)
(96,522) 9,208
Deferred tax asset not recognised 221 (105,730) 0
9,208 9,208

22.1 Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in these financial statements on the ground
of prudence. The management intends to re-assess the recognition of deferred taxation
as at June 30, 2021.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 253,180 198,869
Bills payable 231 0 71,232

Due to an Associated Company (Janana
De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd.) 4,851 0
Advances from customers - contract liabilities 20,001 6,867
Accrued expenses 83,292 62,558

Interest free security deposits

- repayable on demand 23.2 170 170
Due to Wagf-e-Kuli Khan 12,048 12,048
Income tax deducted at source 12,089 5,722
Sales tax payable 13 47,967 15,020
Others 929 797
434,527 373,283

23.1 These were secured against lien on import documents.

23.2 This represents amounts received from the Company's customers and service
providers; this amount has been deposited with a scheduled bank.
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24, ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Mark-up accrued on:

- long term finances 13,035 6,143
- short term finances 33,813 27,264
46,848 33,407

25. SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured

Short term finance facilities available from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) and The
Bank of Khyber (BoK) under mark-up arrangements aggregate Rs.1180 million (2019:
Rs.980 million) and are secured against pledge of raw material and finished good
stocks, first charge on current and fixed assets of the Company and personal
guarantees of three sponsoring directors of the Company. These facilities, during the
year, carried mark-up at the rates ranging from 12.49% to 15.35% (2019: 8.23% to
12.49%) per annum. Facilities available for opening letters of credit and guaranteefrom
NBP and BoK aggregate Rs.500 million (2019: Rs.475 million) out of which the amount
remained unutilised at the year-end was Rs.425 million (2019: Rs.344.778 million).
These facilities are secured against lien on import documents and first charge on
current and fixed assets of the Company. Facilities from NBP and BoK are available
upto December 31, 2020 and January 31, 2021 respectively.

26. TAXATION
Opening balance 17,415 17,450
Provision / (reversal) made during the year:

= current [net of tax credit under section 65B
of the Ordinance amounting Rs. Nil

(2019: Rs.10.350 million)] 26.2 23,234 17,415
= prior years 26.3 (11,089) 30
12,145 17,445

Less: payments / adjustments made against
completed assessments 6,326 17,480
23,234 17,415

26.1 Income tax returns of the Company have been filed upto the tax year 2019 i.e.
accounting year ended June 30, 2019.

26.2 No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the
Company is liable to pay tax due under section 113 (Minimum tax on the income of
certain persons) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance).

26.3 The Company has filed a writ petition before the Peshawar High Court (PHC) under
article 199 of the constitution of Pakistan prayingthat amendments introduced in section
65B of the Ordinance, by inserting a proviso through Finance Act, 2019 whereby tax
credit of 10% has been reduced to 5% for the tax year 2019, be declared illegal, unlawful
and void ab initio; further the said amendments cannot be applied retrospectively. The
PHC vide its order dated December 31, 2019 has ordered that the Company be allowed
to submit its return manually or by making adjustment in e-portal / computer system as
provisional interim arrangement, as per un-amended provisions of section 65B of the
Ordinance (prior to amendment through the Finance Act, 2019). This reversal
represents short tax credit adjusted against tax provision for the year ended June 30,
2019, which has been incorporated in current year's financial statements.
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26.4 The Company's writ petition before the Islamabad High Court, Islamabad praying
exemption from levy of minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance is still pending
adjudication. An adverse judgment by the Court will create tax liabilityunder section 113
of the Ordinance aggregating Rs.39.712 million.

The Finance Act, 2015 has omitted clause 126F of the Ordinance and inserted a new
sub-clause (xx) of clause (11A) in part IV of the second schedule of the Ordinance
wherein exemption from levy of minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance has
been provided. The amendment would have a retrospective impact being related to tax
years 2010, 2011 and 2012.

26.5 As per the rectification order dated February 03, 2017, the Income Tax Department has
charged tax under sections 161/ 205 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs.4.885
million for the tax year 2015 against which the Company has filed an appeal on February
22, 2017 before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), which is pending
adjudication.

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

271 The Company had challenged the levy of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
by filing a petition before the Peshawar High Court, Peshawar (PHC). GIDC was levied
on supply of natural gas under the GIDC Act, 2011. Constitutionalityof the said Act was
challenged before the PHC, which had declared the same as constitutional. The order of
the PHC was assailed before the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), which met the
same fate there vide SCP's judgment dated August 22, 2014. After enactment of the
GIDC Act, 2015, it was challenged before the PHC, which dismissed the said petition
vide its judgment dated May 31, 2017. The Company, thereafter, has filed a petition
before the SCP on July 31, 2017.

The SCP, subsequent to the reporting date vide its judgment dated August 13, 2020,
has dismissed the petition in 2-1 ratio. The SCP's judgment states that the cess under
GIDC Act, 2015 was levied on those consumers of natural gas which on account of their
industrial or commercial dealings had passed on GIDC burden to their customers
Iclients. The SCP's judgment states that no late payment surcharge shall be collected
while the GIDC amount that have become due upto July 31, 2020 will be recovered in 24
In the light of the SCP's judgment described in the preceding paragraph, the Company
has filed a review petition before the SCP for waiver of full amount of GIDC on the
grounds that the Company, being a spinning unit and producing raw materials for
weaving sector, has not passed on GIDC burden to its customers. The yarn market is
not a regulatedmarket, i.e., the Company is a price taker not the price maker; therefore,
spinning sector cannot add GIDC in the price and certainly has not collected the same from its customers.
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd., along with gas bill for the month of August, 2020, has
raised GIDC demands aggregating Rs.345.261 million. The management has filed a
review petition against the aforementioned judgment of the SCP and a highlyfavourable
outcome is expected; therefore, GIDC provisions have not been recognised in the books
of account.

The Company has also challenged the levy of GIDC in the PHC, on the basis of section
8 (2) of the GIDC Act, 2015. The PHC has granted stay order against recovery of GIDC
vide its order dated September 16, 2020, and has referred the case to OGRA for hearing
the pleas of Textile sector.

27.2 Guarantee amounting Rs.75.000 million (2019: Rs.55.200 million) issued by National
Bank of Pakistan on behalf of the Company in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Ltd.
was outstandingas at June 30, 2020.The guaranteeis secured againstthe securities as
detailed in note 25 and is valid upto December 31, 2020.
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27.3 No commitments were outstanding as at June 30, 2020; (commitments against
irrevocable letters of credit for spare parts outstanding as at June 30, 2019 were for
Rs. 37.90 millions.

27.4 Also refer contents of note 26.4 and 26.5.

28. SALES- Net 2020 2019

Local Note (Rupees in thousand)

Own manufactured goods

-Yarn 1,553,956 2,098,767

- Waste 92,281 95,348
1,646,237 2,194,115

Trading activities - raw materials 163,573 43,293
1,809,810 2,237,408

Less: sales tax 281 260,848 19,123

1,548,962 2,218,285
28.1 Zero-ratingregime for textile sector has been withdrawn from July 01, 2019 and sale tax

at the rate of 17% on sales to registered persons and 3% further tax on sales to
unregistered persons have been levied.

29, COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed 29.1 1,031,754 1,426,893

Packing materials consumed 21,637 34,439

Salaries, wages and benefits 29.2 253,782 304,633

Power and fuel 194,451 237,296
Repair and maintenance:

- stores consumed 50,085 57,230

- expenses 6,827 8,614

56,912 65,844

Depreciation 5.7 67,682 63,887

Insurance 3,693 5,884

1,629,911 2,138,876
Adjustment of work-in-process

Opening 51,436 39,494
Closing 9 (21,000) (51,436
30,436 (11,942)

Cost of goods manufactured 1,660,347 2,126,934

Adjustment of finished goods

Opening stock 56,771 26,642

Closing stock 9 (50,095) (56,771
6,676 (30,129)

Cost of goods sold 1,667,023 2,096,805
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29.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases (for manufacturing)
Cost of raw materials sold

Less: closing stock
Cess on cotton consumed

Less: insurance claim received against loss
of raw materials due to fire

Note

2020 2019

(Rupees in thousand)
777,178 606,258
465,800 1,556,597
154,320 40,527
620,120 1,597,124
1,397,298 2,203,382
359,803 777,178
1,037,495 1,426,204
232 689
1,037,727 1,426,893
5,973 0
1,031,754 1,426,893

29.2 These include Rs.22,133 thousand (2019: Rs.18,330 thousand) in respect of staff

retirement benefits - gratuity.
30. DISTRIBUTION COST
Freight, loading, travelling and conveyance
Salaries and benefits
Commission
Others

30.1

2,291 3,629
1,490 1,532
7,816 11,260
254 118
11,851 16,539

30.1 These include Rs.260 thousand (2019: Rs.216 thousand)in respect of staff retirement

benefits - gratuity.
31. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Printing and stationery
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Advertisement
Repair and maintenance
Vehicles' running
Guest house expenses and entertainment
Subscription
Auditors' remuneration:
- statutory audit
- short provisions for the preceding years
- half yearly review
- consultancy and certification charges
- out-of-pocket expenses

311

Legal and professional charges (other than Auditors)

Depreciation
Others

5.7

62,916 60,324
815 1,008
1,083 1,049
3,479 3,142
3,949 4,733
615 490
41 75
1,399 1,109
5,655 5,222
1,567 2,086
712 652
1,169 1,063
192 327
182 165
260 40
45 45
1,848 1,640
4,802 3,611
3,313 3,019
247 203
92,441 88,363
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31.1 These include Rs.3,645 thousand (2019: Rs.3,019 thousand) in respect of staff
retirement benefits - gratuity.

32. OTHER EXPENSES 2020 2019
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - net 5.8 7,369 0
Donations (without directors’ interest) 0 340
Provision for impairment of trade debts 10.1 419 0
7,788 340

33. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Return on bank deposits 807 666
Amortisation of gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 107 106
Income from non-financial assets
Salvage sales - net of sales tax 2,407 2,891
3,321 3,663
34. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- long term finances 33,090 19,468
- short term finances 114,087 94,526
Bank charges 553 1,896
147,730 115,890
35. TAXATION
Current
- for the year 23,234 17,415
- for prior years (11,089) 30
26 12,145 17,445
Deferred:
- for the year (6,332) (73,806)
5,813 (56,361)
36. LOSS PER SHARE
There is no dilutive effect on loss per share
of the Company, which is based on:
Loss after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (387,598) (39,018)
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year 3,652,178 3,652,178
===m=== RUPEES =mmmm=n
Loss per share - basic (106.13) (10.68)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
37.1 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

At amortised cost

Loans and advances 13,049 11,556
Trade debts 6,406 308
Other receivables 5,887 2,895
Cash and bank balances 4,389 2,952

29,731 17,711




37.2

37.3

(a)

Financial liabilities 2020 2019

At amortised cost (Rupees in thousand)
Long term finances 201,187 238,521
Trade and other payables 354,470 345,674
Unclaimed dividends 2,431 2,431
Accrued interest / mark-up 46,848 33,407
Short term finances 669,673 929,483

1,274,609 1,549,516

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictabilityof financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial Performance

Risk management is carried-out by the Company's finance department under policies
approved by the board of directors. The Company's finance department evaluates
financial risks based on principles for overall risk management as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchangerisk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
investment of excess liquidity, provided by the board of directors.

Market risk

Marketrisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Marketrisk comprises of three types of
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to currency
risk on import of raw materials, stores & spares and plant & machinery denominatedin
U.S. $ and Euro. The Company was not exposed to foreign currency risk as at June 30,
2020 as no foreign currency liabilitywas outstanding on the aforementioned date. The
Company's exposure to foreign currency risk for U.S. $ and Euro as at June 30, 2019

was as follows; Rupees U.S.$ Euro
Funded: eaeaa- in thousand - - - - - -
Bills payable - total exposure 71,232 351 72

The following exchange rates were applied during the preceding financial year ended
June 30, 2019:

Average Reporting

rate ) date rate
U.S. $ to Rupee 132.10 164.50
Euro to Rupee 186.99 187.00

Sensitivity analysis

Not applicable as at June 30, 2020 as no funded foreign currency liability was
outstanding on the aforementioned date; (as at June 30, 2019, if Rupee had
strengthened by 10% against U.S.$ and EURO with all other variables held constant,
loss before taxationfor the preceding year would have been lower by the amount shown
below mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains on translation of foreign currency
financial liabilities).

L
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2019
Effect on loss for the preceding year: Rupees in
thousand
U.S. $ to Rupee 5,774
Euro to Rupee 1,347

The weakeningof Rupee against U.S. $ and Euro would have had an equal but opposite
impact on loss before taxation for the preceding year.

The sensitivity analysis prepared was not necessarily indicative of the effect on loss for
the preceding year and liabilities of the Company.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. At the reporting
date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is

as follows;
2020 2019 2020 2019
. . Effective rate Carrying amount
Fixed rate instruments % % (Rupees in thousand)

Financial assets
Bank balances 3.25t010.25 4.50t010.25 165 2,701

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Long term finances 11.441t0 16.76 9.04 tc 14.01 201,187 238,521

Short term finances 12.49to 15.35 8.23to 12.49 669,673 929 483

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date
would not affect statement of profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

AtJune 30, 2020, if interest rate on variable rate financial liabilitieshad been 1% higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, loss before taxationfor the year would have
been higher/ lower by Rs.8.709 million (2019: Rs.11.680 million) mainly as a result of
higher / lower interest expense on variable rate financial liabilities.

(¢) Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk.

37.4 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its
obligationand cause the other party to incur a financialloss. The Company attempts to
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.
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Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their
abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts and balances with banks. To manage
exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews
taking into account the customer's financial position, past experienceand other relevant
factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain
parties. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks with
reasonably high credit ratings.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2020 along with comparative is
tabulated below:

2020 2019
(Rupees in thousand)
Security deposits 1,033 1,033
Trade debts 6,406 308
Other receivables 5,887 2,895
Bank balances 4,389 2,952
17,715 7,188

All the trade debts at the reporting date represent domestic parties.
The ageing of trade debts at June 30, 2020 was as

Not past due 0
Past due 1 - 30 days 12
Past due 30 - 180 days 4,927
Past due above 180 days 1,467

6,406

Trade debts are due from local customers for local sales. All the trade debts are
unsecured and considered good. Management assesses the credit quality of local
customers taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
For bank balances, financial institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted. Credit
risk on bank balances is limited as these are placed with banks having good credit ratings.

The Company measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on local trade
debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date. The Company has recognised a loss allowance of
Rs.0.419 million (2019: Rs.2.290 million) against all local trade debts.
37.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidityrisk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always
have sufficient liquidityto meet its liabilitieswhen due. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the
availability of adequate credit facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below:

Particulars Carrying | Contractual | Less than | Between 1
amount | cash flows 1 year to S years
---------------- Rupees in thousand -=--=--==s-=---
2020
Long term finances 201,187 271,295 62,333 214,962
Trade and other payables 354,470 354,470 354,470 0
Unclaimed dividends 2,431 2,431 2,431 0
Accrued interest / mark-up 46,848 46,848 46,848 0
Short term finances 669,673 715,361 715,361 0
1,274,609 1,396,405 1,181,443 214,962
2019
Long term finances 238,521 337,621 111,609 226,012
Trade and other payables 345,674 345,674 345,674 0
Unclaimed dividends 2,431 2,431 2,431 0
Accrued interest / mark-up 33,407 33,407 33,407 0
Short term finances 929,483 973,928 973,928 0

1,549,616 1,693,061 1,467,049 226,012

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been
determined on the basis of interest/ mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends.
The rates of interest / mark-up have been disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements.

38. MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

The management, during the current financial year, has engaged an independent
external Valuer to carry out valuationof its freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant
& machinery and generators. Selection criteria included market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards were maintained. When measuring
the fair value of an asset, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into differentlevels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest levelinput that is significantto
the entire measurement.
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For assets and liabilitiesthat are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
There were no transfers between different levels of fair values mentioned above.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to providereturns for shareholders,
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company also monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, mark-up bearing long and short term
finances less bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of
financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019

39.

is as fO”OWS; 2020 2019
Rupees in thousand

Long term finances 201,187 238,521
Short term finances 669,673 929,483
Bank balances (4,389) (2,952)
Net debt 866,471 1,165,052
Share capital 36,522 36,522
Share premium reserve 15,096 15,096
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 911,638 898,868
General reserve 88,000 88,000
Gain on remeasurement of forward

foreign exchange contracts 2,032 2,139
(Accumulated loss) / unappropriated profit (64,468) 280,886
Equity 988,820 1,321,511
Capital 1,855,291 2,486,563
Gearing ratio (Net debt / (Net debt + Equity)) 46.70% 46.85%

40. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Particulars Chief Executive Director Executives
2020 | 2019 2020 | 2019 2020 | 2019
Rupees in thousand

Managerial remuneration 13,579 12,212 5,994 5419 16,394 15,662
Bonus / ex-gratia 0 434 0 222 0 847
Retirement benefits 900 900 425 425 608 1,236
Utilities 1,109 861 0 0 0 0
Insurance 6 6 5 4 9 1"
Medical 2 41 203 138 1,082 1,143
Leave encashment 0 0 0 0 1,301 1,080

15,596 14,454 6,626 6,208 19,394 19,979
No. of persons 1 1 1 1 5 5
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40.1 Chief executive, director and four (2019: four) of the executives have been providedwith
the Company maintained cars and residential telephones.

40.2 The Company has provided rent free accommodation to two (2019: two) of its
executives in the mills' colony.

40.3 In addition to above, meeting fees of Rs.780 thousand (2019: Rs.820 thousand) were
paid to eight (2019: seven) non-working directors during the year.

41. TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND RELATED PARTIES

41.1 The Company's shareholders vide a special resolution dated March 30, 2017 have
enhanced the previous approved limit of Rs.5.000 million to Rs.12.500 million on
account of transactions among Associated Companies of the Group, which fall under
normal trade transactions for sale and purchase of store and spare parts, purchase of
raw materials and certain other related transactions not falling within the preview of
section 208 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now section 199 of the
Companies Act, 2017) or the regulations made thereunder.

41.2 Maximum aggregate debit balance of Associated Companies at any month-end during
the year was Rs.4,047 thousand (2019: Rs.15 thousand).

41.3 The related parties of the Company mainly comprise of associated undertakings, its
directors and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course of
business caries-out transactions with various related parties. Remuneration of directors
and key management personnel are disclosed in note 40. There were no transactions
with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment. The
transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices.

Materialtransactions with JananaDe Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. and Rahman Cotton Mills
Ltd. ( Associated Companies on the basis of common directorships) during the year
were as follows:

Janana De Malucho textile Mills Ltd. 2020 2019
Residential rent: (Rupees in thousand)
- paid 2,128 1,851
- received 0 48
Utilities recovered 0 25
Utilities paid 127 97
Salaries & benefits - shared expenses charged 3,128 2,879
Sale of raw materials 32,777 0
Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd.
Sale of raw materials 40,101 0
41.4 Year-end balances were as follows:
Due from Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd. 4,047 0
Due to Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. 4,851 0

42. OPERATING SEGMENT

42.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.
42.2 Yarn sales represent 85.80% (2019: 93.80%) of the total sales of the Company.

42.3 All the Company's sales relate to customers in Pakistan.

42.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2020 are located in Pakistan.

42.5 Two (2019: three) of the Company's customers contributed towards 22.88% (2019:
46.81%) of sales during the year aggregating Rs.355.623 million (2019: Rs.982.520 million)
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43. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019
-—---- Numbers --—--
Number of employees as at June 30,
- permanent 963 1,045
- contractual 21 27
984 1,072
Average number of employees during the year
- permanent 942 1,069
- contractual 21 41
963 1,110
44. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2020 2019
---- Numbers ----
Spindles installed 53,340 53,256
Rotors installed 400 400
Shifts worked for spindles 810 1,094
Shifts worked for rotors 143 1,094
Spindles / shifts worked 33,531,442 55,258,361
Rotors' shifts worked 147,600 313,300
Average count spun 63.66 57.87
—-KGs.----
Actual production on rotors 23,496 297,287
Actual production on spindles 2,104,550 3,788,413

441 |t is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it
fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles'
speed, twist per inch and raw materials used, etc. It also varies according to the pattern
of production adopted in a particular year.

44.2 Under-utilization of capacity was due to effects of COVID - 19 due to closure of Mills
since March, 2020 and severe working capital shortage.

45. IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

During March, 2020, Pakistan has enacted protection measures against COVID - 19
with a significant impact on daily life and supply chain. The evolutionof COVID - 19 as
well as its impact on Pakistan economy is very severe. The management has monitored
the situation to ensure safety of its workers by introducing fool proof anti COVID - 19
measures and smooth operation of its business.

On March 23, 2020, the Government of the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa announced a
temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of the COVID-19. Complying
with the lockdown, the Company temporarily suspended its operations from March 25,
2020. After implementing all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to
ensure safety of employees, the Company intends to resume partial production
activity by the end of October, 2020 and has taken all necessary steps to ensure
smooth and adequate continuation of its business in order to maintain business
performance despite slowed down economic activity. It is also expected that the
outbreak may result in lower demand for the Company’s products in the foreseeable
future. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these
developments on these financial statements, including but not limited to the following
areas:
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- the impairment of assets under IAS 36, ‘Impairment of non-financial assets’;

- the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, ‘Invenlories’;

- deferred taxation in accordance with 1AS 12, ‘Income taxes’

~ provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37 ; and

- going concern assumption used for the preparation of these financial statements.

According to management’'s assessmeni, there are significant accounting impacts of
the effects of COVID-18 on these financial statements.

4. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lon Accrued
tern's\I S;::::ersm Interest/ Total
finances mark-up
---------- Rupees In thousand ewemnmawan
Balance as at June 30, 2018 73,740 726,128 15,326 815,194
Changes from financing activities
Finances obtained 173,365 ] 0 173,365
Finances repaid {8,584) 0 0 {8,584)
Short term finances
obtained net of repayments 0 203,355 0 203,385
Finance cost paid 0 0 (95,913) (95,913}
164,781 203,355 (95,913) 272,223
Other changes
Mark-up / interest expense for the year 0 0 113,894 113,894
Balance as at June 30, 2018 238,521 928,483 33,407 1,201,411
Changes from financing activities
Finances repaid {37,334} [ 1} {37,334)
Short term finances
obtalned net of repayments L] {259,810} 0] (258,810)
Finance cost paid L] [ {133,736) {133,736)
{37,334} {259,810} {133,736} {430,880}
Other changes
Mari-up / intersst expense for the year 1] [} 147,177 147,177
Balance as at June 30, 2020 201,187 559,673 46.348 917,708

47. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on September, 24 2020 by the
board of directors of the Company.

48. GENERAL
48.1 FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary,

for the purpose of comparison; however, no material re-arrangements and re-
classifications have been made in these financial statements.

48.2 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company, in the meeting held on August 12, 2020, has
discussed the matter of merger of the Company with Janana De Malucho Texdtile Mills
Lid. (JDM) and approved the merger of both the Companies. Further, the Board of the
Company in the meeting held on September 24, 2020 has offered JDM to take the
factory buildings and plant & machinery of the Company on lease in order to keep the
plant & machinery of the Company in excellent working condition. This is a stop gap /
interim arrangement till the completion of merger of both the entities.

Shesati Aot Khnn W

Muhammad Iftikhar Ali Shoaib Ahmad Khan Naeem Ullah Malik
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer



BABRI COTTON MILLS LTD.
FORM OF PROXY

I/We
of being a member of Babri Cotton Mills Limited, holder of
Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio No. and/or CDC
Participant I1.D. No. and Sub Account No. hereby
appoint of. or failing him/her

of. member(s) of the Company as my/our
proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf
at the49th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 21st October,
2020 at 12:00 Pm at registered office of the company at Habibabad, Kohat
and at any adjournment thereof.

Aswitness my hand this................... dayof......cocoveieiininnss 2020
Witnesses:
Signature
1. Signature:
Name:
Address: Please

affix five rupees
revenue stamp

NIC or
Passport No:

2. Signature: Signature should agree with the
Name: specimen signature registered
Address: with the Company

NICor
Passport No:

Note: Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the company not less
than 48 hours before the meeting. No person shall be appointed a proxy
who is not a member of the Company qualified to vote except that a
corporation being a member may appoint proxy as a person who is not a
member.

Individual CDC account holders and their proxies are each requested to
attach an attested photocopy of their National Identity Card or Passport
with this proxy form before submission to the Company. Corporate
entities shall submit attested photocopy of the Board of Directors’
Resolution/Power of Attorney containing specimen signature of the
nominee along with proxy form to the Company. The proxy shall
produce his/her original NIC or original passport at the time of the
meeting.
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